CITY COMMISSION

L MAYOR
lt O awr ence I
COMMISSIONERS
MIKE AMYX
JEREMY FARMER

L Ll DR. TERRY RIORDAN
ROBERT J. SCHUMM
DAVID L. CORLISS City Offices 6 East 6"
CITY MANAGER PO Box 708 66044-0708 785-832-3000
www.lawrenceks.org FAX 785-832-3405

October 22, 2013
The Board of Commissioners of the City of Lawrence met in regular session at 6:35
p.m., in the City Commission Chambers in City Hall with Mayor Dever presiding and members
Amyx, Farmer, Riordan and Schumm present.
A. RECOGNITION/PROCLAMATION/PRESENTATION
1. Proclaim Thursday, October 31, 2013 to be Halloween Trick-or-Treating Night.
B. CONSENT AGENDA
Vice Mayor Amyx asked that item number 3, claims, be pulled from the consent agenda
for a separate vote.
Brian Sorenson asked that the taxicab license on item 4 be pulled from the consent
agenda for separate discussion.
It was moved by Riordan, seconded by Schumm to approve the consent agenda as
below, minus items 3 and 4. Motion carried unanimously.
1. Approved City Commission meeting minutes from 09/24/13 and 10/01/13.
2. Received minutes from various boards and commissions:
Sister Cities Advisory Board meeting of 08/14/13
3. THIS ITEM WAS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA FOR A SEPARATE VOTE.
Approved claims to 258 vendors in the amount of $6,268,052.13 and payroll from
October 6, 2013 to October 19, 2013, in the amount of $1,870,813.08.
4. THIS ITEM WAS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA FOR SEPARATE
DISCUSSION. Approved the Drinking Establishment Licenses for Crimson and Brews,
925 lowa, Ste: Q; and Encore Café, 1007 Massachusetts. DEFERRED consideration of

the Taxicab License for Party on Wheels, 2211 East 22™.

5. Bid and purchase items:

(4 , — , . . - -
"0" We are committed to providing excellent city services that enhance the quality of life for the Lawrence Community


http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/proclamation_trick_or_treating_night.html

10.

11.

a) Set a Bid Date of November 19, 2013 for Bid Number B1359, Project
UT1102KA Kaw WTP Raw Water Intake Replacement

b) Approved the purchase of a John Deere 7700 Precision Cut Fairway
Mower off the State of Kansas contract from the John Deere Company,
for a total of $44,634.01.

c) Approved the sole source purchase of six handheld computers for
reading water meters and associated docking stations to Itron, Inc. in the
amount of $18,063.

d) Authorized the City Manager to Execute Supplemental Agreement No. 1,
in the amount of $1,566,900, to the Existing Engineering Services
Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for Project UT1304
Wakarusa Wastewater Treatment Plant and Conveyance Corridor
Facilities.

e) Authorized payment of $15,325 to the Lawrence Journal World for the
printing and dissemination of the 2014 Winter/Spring Activities Guide.

Adopted on first reading Ordinance No. 8931, amending Section 19 of the City Code to
set the non-emergency service charge for utility customers at $25.00.

Adopted the following ordinances on second and final reading:

a) Ordinance No. 8921, amended the Contractor Licensing Regulations in Chapter
V, Article 15, Section 5-1513 to correct an error in the Section number; added
Section 5-1512.1 to create a Class L Limited Specialty Contractor category; and
amended Section 5-1515 to establish parameters under which a Class L Limited
Contractor License may be issued.

b) Ordinance No. 8835, to rezoned (Z-12-00325) approximately 10.56 acres
from RS7 (Single-Dwelling Residential) to RS5 (Single-Dwelling
Residential) for Fairfield Farms East Addition, located SE of 25" Terrace
and O’Connell Road. (PC Item 1; approved 9-0 on 1/28/13)

Adopted Resolution No. 7048, authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds in
the amount of $120,000; and approved project PW1346, downtown street light
replacement project.

Approved Site Plan SP-13-00376 and sidewalk dining and hospitality license for Leroy’s
located at 729 New Hampshire Street. Submitted by Paul Werner Architects, for Jean S.
Hetzel Trustee, property owner of record.

Authorized the Mayor to sign a Release of Mortgage for Charlotte Pessoni, 1241
Delaware Street, and Edward R. and Irene Armstrong Neider, 1017 Home Circle.

Authorized the Mayor to execute a Consent to Assignment Agreement between Ninth
and New Hampshire, LLC and Commerce Bank, relating to the financing of the 901 New



Hampshire apartment building project (existing apartment building on the southwest
corner of 9" & New Hampshire).

Consent Agenda Item 3, claims, was removed for a separate vote.

Moved by Riordan, seconded by Schumm, to approve non-Rock Chalk Park related
claims to 255 vendors in the amount of $4,728,652.33. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Farmer, to approve Rock Chalk Park related claims
to 3 vendors in the amount of $1,539,399.80. Aye: Dever, Farmer, Riordan, and Schumm. Nay:
Amyx. Motion carried.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Farmer, to approve payroll from October 6, 2013 to
October 19, 2013 in the amount of $1,870,813.08. Motion carried unanimously.

Regarding Consent Agenda No. 4, Taxicab License for Party on Wheels, 2211 East
22M Bryan Sorenson, Ground Transportation Service, said the last 2 or 3 Taxicab License that
were approved weren't justified because it stated in the City of Lawrence, City Code, Chapter 6,
Article 605, that an investigation was needed to deem whether or not more transportation was
needed. He said taxicab licenses were being approved one after another. He said everyone
that wanted to buy a van or get into the taxi business just needed to get a license. He said
Party on Wheels had been running illegally for almost 2 years and finally code enforcement was
called and Party on Wheels was now trying to apply for a license. He said he was representing
Ground Transportation Service and Shawn Hoefler from Jayhawk Taxi was here and they both
felt there was plenty of taxi service available.

Amyx asked when Sorenson received his license.

Sorenson said he bought the existing company that had been in business for about 14
years. He said they just had to renew at the beginning of the year. He said his company had
been the longest running taxi company in town and Hoefler was the second. He said a month
ago the City Commission approved First Class Transportation and just last week a taxi called

Redycab which was a party bus company and then tonight was the Party on Wheels



Transportation. He said before too long they would have 25 cab companies and no one would
be able to be successful at it.

Schumm asked how many cabs Sorenson operated.

Sorenson said he had seven cabs and a couple of shuttles that did airport services and
couple of town cars. He said Jayhawk Taxi had 4 taxicabs.

Schumm said so a total of 11 vehicles to service the City of Lawrence.

Sorenson said First Class Transportation had two big 15 passenger vans that they were
running and Redycab had a party bus. During the day time he kept 2 or 3 taxicabs busy. The
busiest time was Friday and Saturday nights especially during the bar rush time when everyone
wanted to go home at the same time at 2:00 am when it was really congested, but other than
that, it was easy enough for his taxicabs and Jayhawk taxicabs to keep the town occupied with
what they had right now.

Dever called for public comment.

After receiving no public comment, Dever said the only reason they would pull this taxi
license and not approve it as they had in the past was because there was a process that
needed to be undertaken.

Jonathan Douglass, Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk, said there was nothing to
stop the City Commission from taking into consideration those factors outlined in the code
currently and making a determination, but he asked, if the Commission’s was going to consider
denying the license, that they defer the license instead and have a chance to give proper notice
to the applicant that there would be a full blown hearing on this item.

Dever said that sounded fine. He asked if any Commissioner had any problem with
deferring this item.

Riordan said he thought it should be deferred because one question was if there was a
moral reason not to approve this taxicab license when someone was operating for two years

illegally and did he know he was operating two years illegally.

4



Dever said the Commission had to defer this item. He asked if Douglass had used this
code before.

Douglass said not in his time or his deputy that had been with the City much longer had
they ever presented findings for the City Commission to make. He said he was not sure how he
would determine to make a recommendation to the City Commission whether there were not
enough or too many taxicabs. He said that was beyond the realm of anything they did with any
other license. He said the City Clerk’s Office regulated things through licenses, primarily to
protect the public health, safety, and welfare and not to regulate the number of certain types of
businesses.

Dever suggested deferring the item and discuss the need to amend the City Code
language.

Douglass said City staff, City Attorney’s Office, and City Clerk’s Office, was working on
amending that language already. He said this language was over 50 years old and the
language could definitely use some modernization to make sure that it fit the needs of the
community, businesses, and all other legal frameworks that it ought to.

Shawn Hoefler, Jayhawk Taxi, said they had been in operation since 2007. He said
regarding the code being changed, the two things that he and Sorenson agreed with was not
only to check to see if they had insurance, but the proper commercial insurance. He said when
the City Clerk’s Office did the application process they just made sure the insurance was on the
vehicle for that year. He said the City Clerk’s Office didn’t call the insurance company to make
sure they had the right policy because they had to pay a lot of money on their insurance to have
the right policy. He said with Party on Wheels running illegally for two years that taxi business
didn’t need to have that insurance. He said when Douglass mentioned safety and the welfare,
the insurance was the big deal. The second thing they would like to see was an Employer
Identification Number (EIN) check for any cab company that wanted to operate in the City of

Lawrence should be a legal company and should have a federal tax identification number. He

5



said those were the two things that would like to see added to the process, if and when the City

rewrote that code.

Dever said the Commission would take that under advisement.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Amyx, to defer the taxicab license for Party on

Wheels. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Amyx, seconded by Farmer, to approve all other licenses. Motion carried

unanimously.

C.

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:
David Corliss, City Manager, presented the report.

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:

Considered approving a request to rezone, Z-13-00287, approximately .27 acre
from RM12D-UC (Multi-Dwelling Residential with Urban Conservation Overlay)
District to CS-UC (Commercial Strip with Urban Conservation Overlay) District,
located at 804 Pennsylvania St. Submitted by Bartlett & West, Inc., for Ohio
Mortgage Investors LLC, property owner of record. Adopted on first reading,
Ordinance No. 8920, rezoning (Z-13-00287) approximately .27 acre from RM12D-UC
(Multi-Dwelling Residential with Urban Conservation Overlay) District to CS-UC
(Commercial Strip_with Urban Conservation Overlay) District, located at 804
Pennsylvania St. (PC Item 7; approved 9-1 on 9/23/13)

Scott McCullough, Planning and Development Services Director, asked that

Commissioners disclose any ex-parte discussions.

Farmer said he hadn’t had any ex-parte discussions.

Schumm said he was present at the last East Lawrence Neighborhood Association

meeting and spoke at length about this project in general terms. Specifically about food and

liquor requirements and how the ratios were interpreted in the industry which he was a part of.

Amyx said the only ex-parte comment he had was with Leslie Soden and they only

talked about the bar and the 55% rule.

Dever said he had conversation with Leslie Soden and Tony Krsnich discussing

guestions about the application.


http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_z-13-00287_ord_8920.pdf

Schumm said he had a conversation with Leslie Soden and Soden was at the meeting
as well.

Riordan said he didn’t have anything to report.

Mary Miller, Planner, presented the staff report.

Schumm said he was confused on the zoning request. He asked if 804 Pennsylvania
Street was a vacant lot.

Miller said no, previously it was a duplex and before that it was a historic building.

Schumm said that was 806 Pennsylvania.

Miller said it was called 804/806 Pennsylvania because it was a duplex, but its official
address was 804 Pennsylvania and was the same lot.

Schumm said it was the two garages.

Miller said correct and the stone building.

Schumm said the stone building back to the east that fronted on the alley and between
the Poehler Building and the garage.

Miller said it was located on the alley between the Poehler Building and the garage.

Schumm said as well as the vacant property to the north.

Miller said it was just the north property.

Schumm said there was a parking lot on the north.

Scott McCullough, Planning and Development Services Director, said yes.

Schumm said it was the parking lot and the structure at 806 Pennsylvania.

Miller said it was a small parking area.

Schumm said this was a rezoning and the rule would run with the land in perpetuity.

Miller said correct.

Schumm said unless it was downzoned or a zoning change took place and changed it.
He asked how was this different and why weren’t they using a special use permit, instead of the

rezoning tying a liquor law to a land use or was it one in the same thing.

7



Miller said it was the condition that was applied on the zoning. They could have applied
a condition back when it was zoned to CS district. There could have been a condition that
stated a special use permit, but instead they wanted to make the bar more of an accessory use.
It would not be an actual bar. When having the 55% food sales, it meant primarily an
establishment was a restaurant and the bar was an accessory. The neighborhood felt that
would be better than allowing a bar even with a special use permit.

McCullough said the zoning request was CS zoning which was the predominate
commercial zoning of the Poehler District and this condition was already in place. He said it
was rezoned to the duplex use when the applicant felt that that was going to be the use in the
future and then when Krsnich decided to make it a bar use, the logical step was to revert it back
to that CS zoning with that same condition. The CS zoning district allowed bars outright without
a special use permit and even without conditions. The condition of the 55 percent rule, which
they were borrowing from the CD district was applied to the entire Poehler District and was
being applied again back to this property.

Schumm said it was commercial and this was going back to the commercial state in
which all the liguor consumption was allowed.

McCullough said it was reverting back to what it formally had with the extension of the
time period by which to comply with the condition of 55% and an additional year.

Amyx said in 2006 when the Commission approved Ordinance No. 8054, he asked if
there was discussion at that time about that 55 percent rule and that it was important that that
came into play at that point.

McCullough said yes because that CS district again, would have had to been added as a
special condition. It was a prohibited use unless that condition was maintained.

Amyx asked if the recommendation of the Planning Commission was different.

McCullough said it was different in the sense that the condition remained. He said how

they practiced that condition was that an establishment was created and established on a

8



certain date and then they basically had the calendar year to prove they could meet the
condition. He said the applicant worked with the City Clerk’s Office and submitted their receipts.
Staff checked those receipts and if they met the 55 percent, great, but if the applicant hadn't,
staff called them in to figure out how they could meet it. He said one of the recent
establishments he was familiar with downtown, for example, staff worked with them to add more
service, more menu, lunch times, and those type of things to give the applicant a grace period
by which to come into compliance with the condition. He said when talking to this applicant
about that process, he had concerns for not being able to meet that requirement in the first year
and requested to make it two years to be able to prove to the City that the applicant was able to
maintain 55 percent in non-alcohol sales and was how staff arrived at this negotiated condition
on the zoning.

Amyx asked if staff pulled occupancy at the end of the first year on any applicant.

McCullough said there was an issue on Massachusetts Street where staff discovered
that an establishment wasn’t meeting the food sales requirement. The applicant added a lunch
menu. Jo Shmo’s was one of the establishments that staff worked with.

Mayor Dever called for public comment.

Eric Jay said he and his wife were in the process of building a home about a half block
from the proposed development. He was the co-owner of a small company called
Struct/Restruct LLC, which was located a block and a half south of the proposed rezoning. He
said he and his wife decided a year and a half ago that Lawrence was where they wanted to
raise their family. He said they bought their lot well aware of the mixed use nature of the
neighborhood. In fact, that was part of their appeal in picking this location. He said they
supported the idea of neighborhood dining establishment and thought the east side community
would benefit for having a place for families and friends could gather to enjoy others company
and thought this would be a successful business venture. He said their concern arose from the

many unknowns associated with the proposed development. Their children would be raised in

9



the direct line of sight of the proposed development and they wanted to make every effort to
ensure it was an asset to the area and not the type of establishment that would detract from the
charm and appeal of the neighborhood. He said they currently lived at 9" and Ohio, among a
mix of owner occupied homes and student rentals. At night it was crossroad for college
students headed downtown or to a house party. On weekends and more often than not, on a
least one night a week they were guaranteed to be woken by inebriated college students. The
hooting and hollering were disruptive enough, but the real impact was the disrespect and
destruction of private property. They had potted plants smashed, their children’s scooters taken
for joy rides, vehicles keyed, mirrors smashed and the side of their house was used as a urinal.
In addition to the impaired judgment displayed, the actions also arose from the people not being
part of the neighborhood and were just passing through and felt no ownership or responsibility
for how things were treated. He said he knew from experience that if the proposed
development became a straight up bar, with hours until 2:00 am, the clientele it attracted would
exhibit the same behaviors of bar goers anywhere. Of course not all bar patrons had the same
purpose of getting pickled, but a drink or two could turn up anyone’s volume. The current
design of the property, namely the lack of a kitchen and a large outdoor patio certainly
resembled an outdoor drinking oriented establishment and that could potentially create a very
noisy scene. In the past month there had been several receptions at the Cider Building just
south of the proposed development. He said from their house on New Jersey, they could
clearly hear people standing outside the front doors of the Cider Building who were mostly
speaking at a normal level. If the patio of the proposed development were at capacity, all 1300
square feet, his family and the neighborhood would be subjected to a roar of noise. He said an
amplified outdoor event such as a concert or movie screening, using speakers would also be a
significant disruption to the neighborhood. The noise would travel for blocks. He said from their
residence on Ohio they could hear events occurring 5 blocks away on Massachusetts. In order

for the proposed development to benefit to its surrounding neighbors and enjoy the

10



neighborhoods patronage, the hours of operation must be limited and curfews enforced for
outdoor events. They recommended a closing time of midnight and outdoor events ending by
9:00 pm on weeknights and 11:00 pm on weekends. With those operating conditions in place,
they were more confident that the environment created would be respectful to the neighborhood
and conducive to their kids getting a good night’s rest. He said he and his wife request that the
City Commission defer the agenda item to a later meeting until the developer had specifics
about the planned establishment. He said the developer had yet to meet with his family or
anyone on New Jersey. Taking a bit more time to collaborate with the neighborhood and outline
details of the plan would not only ease concerns of the surrounding residence, but could very
well ensure a loyal clientele.

Tony Krsnich, applicant, said he was surprised to hear Jay’'s comments. He said he met
with Jay at his house, a beautiful modern house and talked to Jay about their concept and the
concept had not changed. He said the amount of investment that Jay was making in the
neighborhood he had no doubt that Jay had rightful concerns. He said he was holding a sheet
of paper that had been signed by 66 people which represented all but 6% of the people that
actually lived at the Poehler Lofts and decided not to sign the petition, but 80% had. He said
100% of the property owners and adjacent property owners had signed the petition and 100% of
the people that worked in the area had signed the petition as well. He said regarding noise,
they shouldn’t be talking about a 931 square foot bistro, but talking about the talk of the town,
nationally award winning project, the Cider Gallery. The Cider Gallery was 10 times the size of
this space and received one complaint at which point he worked very closely with Soden last
week and both believed they remedied that complaint which was at 10:00 pm, they closed the
garage door. He said he was broke because of it, but in the area he had invested in almost 2
city blocks and there was no way that they would create a problem in the area. He said they
would make much more money, short-term, if they just placed a $50,000 Band-Aid on it and

rented it out as a duplex. He said it was going to be $150,000 investment. He said regarding

11



the rezoning, from the beginning, he was unsure if they could meet the 55% or more test
because of the transition in the area as Schumm had discussed. He said they had lots of
construction going on and asked for an additional year. He believed he could had come to the
Commission with this list from the business plan and gotten the votes to have a bar. He said
they volunteered to do the 55% food sales. He said city planning staff recommended before the
Planning Commission one of two options which was a full blown bar, close the bar at 12:00 am
or 12:30 am depending on whether it was Thursday, Friday or a Saturday night or agree to the
55% or more rule. He said they decided to achieve the goal of 55% food sales, but asked for
one additional year. He said he had the best interest of the neighborhood, commonly known as
the warehouse arts district in place. He said he would never do anything to jeopardize the
public/private partnership that they had in place and asked the City Commission for their
support.

Schumm said the layout that he had seen of the proposed bistro did not have a kitchen.

Krsnich said correct. He said they had large outdoor kitchen that was going in and it
was going to be very similar to the Bourgeois Pig, about three times the size with the addition of
cold cuts, prepared food and that was how they intended on achieving the 55% or more test.
He said they would work with local vendors to provide food.

Schumm asked if they would prepare food on site.

Krsnich said due to the size of the building, they had very minimal opportunity and that
was why there were looking at premade food for resale. Additional, year two there was a strong
opportunity that the garages would be taken down and a new very modern kitchen would be
built at that location, but in good faith he couldn’t come before the Commission and tell them
those plans were going to happen when they broke ground however, they had offers to do so
and was the reason for an additional year versus having a full blown bar and closing down at
midnight or 12:30 am.

Schumm said he was confused about the option of a full blown bar.

12



Krsnich said essentially, due to staff recommendation, they had two options, one option
was the 55% or more food sale requirement, or no restaurant component, but close down at
midnight or 12:30 am on the weekends. He said they wanted to close at that time and probably
would and the only difference was the 55% or more. There were a lot of people living at the
Poehler Lofts that worked in the service industry that get off work at 11:30 pm or midnight and
they wanted to be accommodating to those people as well. He said for those reasons they
opted to go with the 55% food sales or more which didn’t have a time restriction.

McCullough said they presented in their staff report two options and discussed a number
of things with the Planning Commission. One was a different operational characteristics
between more of a restaurant/bar and a straight bar and that was where the 55% food sales
came in. He said for example, if you wanted to sit and dine that was a different operation than if
you were standing, the games on television and everyone was getting loud and such. He said
staff presented two options for consideration, one option was the 55% rule and made sure that
food sales would be part of the operation and the second would be an outright permitted bar
without the food sales requirement but with the opportunity to place conditions on the use itself.
The conditions staff proposed weren’t specific but were up for discussion. The conditions they
proposed was restricting business hours, amplified music in the outdoor seating area, and
limiting the size of the outdoor seating area. At the end of the discussion and in part because of
the communication they received from the East Lawrence Neighborhood Association, the
Planning Commission was recommending the 55% rule condition.

Schumm said but legally, they could request to go either direction.

McCullough said the Planning Commission had that ability to recommend either option
to the City Commission.

Schumm said in the zone they were in, the Planning Commission could have approved a
straight bar.

McCullough said yes.

13



Amyx said going back to Ordinance No. 8054, where the City Commission established
those restrictions, but asked what the difference with the one and two year compliance.

McCullough said that was the difference between the two zoning districts. In other words
a tenant space down the 800 block of Pennsylvania could come in and site plan a bar use,
would have the 55% rule applied to it and could be established without any conditional approval
because the zoning existed in most of that area.

Amyx said what the Planning Commission recommended was the two year compliance.

Josh Davis, President of the East Lawrence Neighborhood Association, said he had
talked to Krsnich and agreed on a lot of things. He also agreed with some of the concerns Jay
brought up and concerns from the board. As a representative of the board, they had 100%
agreement in support of the bar as a 55% restriction and closing at midnight. He said he under
stood Krsnich position as a business man and his investment with money trying to make this
work. He said he believed Krsnich had the best interest of the area because of his investment
and he didn’t think Krsnich wanted a nuisance property or obscene noise and problems. He
said one of his concerns was that this area was receiving a lot of attention and in his mind he
saw this as a top of hill of sorts because it was going to be the first big change along those lines.
The Cider Building was big and he was thankful for that project. He said he was concerned
what the precedent might be and who might be the next developer and would they be as
invested. He said he wanted to make sure that whatever was done was done thoughtfully
because right now everybody was invested in the area, including the City in building brick
streets. He said they didn’t need a bar district, but needed to be a place where families were
buying homes and restoring those homes or building new homes, but would like a place to go to
have a sandwich and a beer. He said how to balance all of those things, he was not sure. He
said they presented some ideas, but he wasn’t a zoning expert. Ultimately, he was thinking

about the end goal and they proposed some mechanisms to help reach that end goal.

14



Schumm asked if the board had been able to sit down with Krsnich and go over the
issues their board had.

Davis said Krsnich had been to meetings.

Krsnich said he had been to two of the last 5 meetings. He said furthermore there was a
little bit more criticism at the Planning Commission from one gentleman, the only vote in
opposition, that he and the general management team addressed the concept with individuals in
the area directly. He said they wanted one on one time, individualized time. He said he took
that to heart last Monday, a week from yesterday, and posted 5 days prior in the building at the
Poehler Lofts that they would have a town hall discussion. He said just like any of the other
developments in the Warehouse Arts District, not only was everyone being informed, but it was
a job creation tool.

Schumm asked about the points Davis was a part of, in terms of operation.

Davis said it sounded like solely the closing time and it was mentioned tonight that it
might not be a late running establishment.

Schumm said the specific question was what time would they close Sunday through
Thursday and Friday and Saturday; and, what time was amplified music restricted from the patio
outside.

Krsnich said there was no amplified music, due to the 55% or more test just like any
other restaurant. He said he didn’t believe restaurants had a closing time before 2 am.

Schumm said alcohol couldn’t be sold after 2 am.

Krsnich said they were taking ELNA recommendation and to be a restaurant at which
point they would close down at 2:00 am. They would have no amplified music. He said they
would sell 55% or more, being a restaurant, but were being asked for additional stipulations
which would potentially restrict the success or profitability of the establishment. If closing time
was the issue and not 55% or more, he would do either one. He said both had pluses and

minuses. If they needed to close down Monday through Wednesday for example at 12:00 and

15



Thursday, Friday and Saturday where some of those vibrant artist types were wanting last call
at 1:00 am, he said he would close it down an hour earlier, but did not want to horse trade a
deal after he already bent over backwards, when he truly believed in the best interest of the
district, he could have asked for a full blown bar. He said this rezoning hindrance was
volunteered by the former developer but quite frankly, he wasn’t sure the former developer
realized that this area could potentially turn into an arts district like it had. He said this idea of
the bistro occurred organically and wasn’t his idea. He said he spent more time talking about
this bistro than he had on the Poehler Building. He said this was the idea of the people that
lived in the area. He said he was in favor of cooperating, but suggested not stopping the
progress made and continue the vibrancy of the warehouse arts district.

Schumm said the only thing he would say about that was there really wasn’t going to be
a restaurant because there was no kitchen and without the kitchen, and without the 55%
requirement being met for two years, he might have quite a bar without the food. He said when
you have a bar without food there was a more boisterous or a different kind of clientele.

Krsnich said he appreciated that, but Schumm knew him well enough that if it was ever a
problem, he would pull the plug long before anyone in the room would. He said he had more a
vested interest than anyone. He said coffee counted for the 55% test and a repackaged cold
cut counted. He said he didn’t want to make commitments based upon proposals or letters of
intent. He said if Schumm understood some of the caliber of people that were interested in
taking this challenge it would ease a lot of concerns. He said he was in favor of the rezoning of
804 Pennsylvania, the opening of a Bistro at this location and understood that the revenue from
non-alcoholic sales could be less than 55%. He said they were signing up for more than the
55%, but this was the public that was directly engaged, people that lived in the district and
adjacent property owners.

Dever said the only question he was hearing was 55% food and closing time. He said

ELNA wanted both although both were never simultaneously applied to any establishment.

16



Davis said it was also not in staff's recommendation.

Dever said what ELNA was in favor of was both restrictions.

Davis said to please note that those were tools they were thinking of to try to ultimately
protect the environment for this development and future development. He said while they could
say the board wanted both of those conditions which was true, but ultimately they wanted those
conditions down the road and those were the tools they were seeking.

Mike Riling said he was a member of several LLC’s that own property in that area on
Pennsylvania Street. He said they owned 832, 826, Pennsylvania and 720 East 9". He said he
had been down for quite a while and seen a dramatic change in the property and the way it had
been used. He said he knew Krsnich and knew that bars were an alarm to the community, but
knew Krsnich was sincere and if it did get bad, Krsnich would shut it down because Krsnich had
more to lose than anyone by having a bar next to the Poehler Building. He said they spent a lot
of money developing that building and what the whole scheme was to make Pennsylvania
Street and that area a destination. He said they weren’t going to have a kind of rowdy bar that
people were afraid of to make into a destination. He said even the East Lawrence community
wanted to share in the proper atmosphere so the danger was if this could change into an
improper atmosphere, but the Commission would have control over that with a two year come
back. He said the City Commission could exercise some control if there wasn’t a commitment
being met and any type of showing of good faith toward the food sales, the City would have
some options, but it wouldn’t get to that point. He said the biggest investment for Krsnich and
his group was the Poehler Building by far much more than this little bar. He said he had been
inside that duplex a couple of times and would make a cool little place to have a beer and a
sandwich. He said he was convinced that Krsnich would put together a nice place where
everyone would be happy with, but they needed to let Krsnich make a little money. He said the

area had changed tremendously in the last 10 years.

17



Leslie Soden said she knew a lot about zoning, but not everything and was wondering,
when a tenant arrived for that building with perhaps a special use permit or a conditional use
permit, she wasn’t sure of the difference. She said she didn’'t know if that would be applied to
the zoning or applied to the liquor license, but perhaps something that was renewed on an
annual basis would be a fair compromise.

Dever asked if liquor licenses renewed annually.

Douglass said liquor licenses were renewed every two years now.

Schumm said he went to the ELNA meeting and had quite a discussion. He said there
were probably 20 people present. He said what he took away from that meeting was that they
were generally in favor of the bar, but were concerned about the food requirement because that
dictated what type of bar it would be and were concerned about the hours of operation and
noise. He said one concern he had was this condition would run with the land and if that project
was sold then someone else was the new owner and as they talked in the meeting, bars were
all about management. He said there were good bars and bars they had problems with. He said
they had problems out south around McDonald’s, problems downtown and a number of really
good bars that operate well. He said someone couldn’t classify all bars as being problematic
and difficult, but here were operators that didn’t do a good job. He said he had complete faith in
Krsnich that he would operate this bar in the best way. He said what he did have a concern,
based upon his career, was how Krsnich would get to 55% without a kitchen. He said it was
almost impossible, in fact if they were talking about a downtown establishment and someone
came up with the same proposal, the Commission would want a kitchen if selling 55% food. He
said Krsnich could do this for a year or two years, but he guessed they would be back to the
Commission to see if they could waive the 55% food requirement all together which then spoke
to another issue which was what did someone else take away from that who wanted to operate
something downtown when 55% was an absolute minimum. He said if the Commission started

waiving those conditions then all of a sudden you start waiving for something else. He said 55%

18



food was a very liberal amount of food when talking about a bistro. He said when they started
out downtown it was a 75% food requirement to have a sidewalk café because they didn’t want
those establishment to be overpowered with alcohol sales to where they were rowdy and noisy
on Massachusetts Street and the interior was 65% food sales, then an applicant came with a
new restaurant and wanted it lowered to 55% and if eventually got to 55% food sales and 45%
alcohol. He didn’'t know if it differentiated between the sidewalk café and the interior any longer
or not, but it was a very liberal amount of liquor to food if he was going to have a bistro or a
dining operation.

Amyx asked if the other conditions the Planning Commission required for this district
was okay as far as operation of 55% food sales and one or two years.

Schumm said he believed that was correct.

Amyx suggested reviewing the bistro, after the first year, to see how it was progressing
with the 55% food sales requirement.

Dever said it was Krsnich point that it was going to take that long just to get it ramped
up. He said there was probably a way to achieve that 55% requirement with today’s costs with
ancillary drinking products such as lattes and coffees. He said with it being a small facility, it
might actually achieve that requirement. He said the bistro should go to a straight bar and close
at 12:30 a.m. and be done with it, because Schumm was worried about the land issue and
meeting the food requirement.

Amyx said then there was no control at all.

Farmer said Krsnich had a vested interest in the success. If this bistro was unsuccessful
and it created detriment to the neighborhood and people didn’t want to work in the Cider
Building and live in the Poehler Building, Krsnich would be shooting himself in the foot. He said
he agreed with Schumm that management of bars was key and important. One of the things he
appreciated about this was that it was a very innovative business model. A lot of folks were

moving toward the locally made, grown, and prepared food. He said something like this would

19



be pretty innovative idea to see if it would work because a lot of folks would love to eat culinary.
If they could revisit this and see if the bistro was close to meeting the food sales requirement
after a year or two would be good. He said he wasn’t in that type of business and didn’'t have
the same perspective as Schumm. He said it seemed that they wouldn’t lose anything by giving
it a shot to see if this innovative business model for this particular area was something that
could work, with the caveat that it could come back to the commission for review.

Riordan said he had a concern about bringing this item back in a year because what was
okay, 50%7 45%7? He said it made more sense to bring it back in two years because that was
what the applicant was asking. He said Schumm made a good point that this would be difficult,
but it was a unique project and most of the people in that area were interested in it. He said he
happened to live next to people who were up until 2:00 or 3:00 a.m., making lots of noise and
knew what that was like. He said there were difficulties with it being a zoning issue, but he
thought it was reasonable to try even though it might not make it.

Farmer said he was trying to compromise with Schumm. If after a year the bistro was at
12% food sales, they probably wouldn’t make the 55% food sales in two years. He agreed with
Riordan in giving Krsnich two years to meet the 55% food sales.

Riordan said Krsnich had shown that he was respectful of this area and had a lot to lose
and he might be wrong, but someone else would have the same requirements. He said to close
the bistro at 1:00 a.m. would be reasonable because that would give people that work in that
area an hour after those jobs ended. He said he was leaning toward granting this zoning
request.

Schumm said Krsnich had not agreed to close at 1:00 a.m., but wanted to close at 2:00
a.m.

Riordan said he heard that Krsnich wanted to close at 1:00 a.m. and asked if he had

misunderstood.

20



Krsnich said he shared in Schumm’s and Amyx’s concerns. He said from the beginning,
meeting the 55% test was never on his radar screen. In fact to do so in year one, he would
need to have people parachuting in to drink coffee. He said he didn’t think it was possible. The
idea was meant for one reason and that was to appease East Lawrence Neighborhood
Association request and they were going to try to do it. He said at best it would take two years.
He said the two options were the 55% or more, which was a restaurant that did not have a
closing time, or have a bar which there was no food requirement and wasn’t a restaurant, but
there was a closing time. He said he was standing before the City Commission not knowing
which way to turn. He said he understood if a precedent was to be set for someone on
Massachusetts Street, this was voluntarily done by the previous developer and it might make
sense to scale it back and to just have an arbitrary closing time and have it be a bar. He said he
was open and wanted to be transparent and not tell people what they wanted to hear and over
promise and under deliver. He said he had the same concerns, but he had made a commitment
to try to achieve the 55% food sales requirement. He said if the letters and conversations
regarding the garages turn out, he wouldn’t have a problem and would probably have no
problem meeting the 55% test, but right now what he had in hand, he did not have that and it
was not bankable and was the reason he was asking for two years. If it didn’t need to be a
restaurant he would agree to a 1:.00 a.m. closing time for the bar, Thursday, Friday, and
Saturday night and a midnight or before any other night of the week. Again, he said they were
talking about a 900 square foot building that might be able hold 70 or 80 people. The Cider
Gallery that had a full-blown liquor license, a huge outdoor space literally 5 times the amount of
people could fit outdoors then the entire bistro complex indoors and outdoors was the talk of the
town. He said for some reason they were really focused on a precedent, but the precedent they
were setting was that future developers agreed that ELNA wishes. He said he as just asking for
one additional year and if that set a precedent, he could agree to the challenge of that with

Schumm. He said if that was the case, then let’s call it what it very well might be which if it did

21



fail the 55% test, it would be a bar and scale the hours back accordingly, but it had to be
bankable. He said whatever it would be, it would be respectful and an asset to the Warehouse
Arts District and not a detriment.

David Corliss, City Manager, said the Commission could adopt the ordinance as
recommended by the Planning Commission and then add 24 months of operation and if it
wasn’t meeting the 55% food sale requirement, the City Commission could go back and limit the
hours of operation at that time. He said he was trying to find some way to suggest a
compromise on this issue.

Dever said he remember there was similar angst when it came to the Bourgeois Pig. He
said there were some issues about the outdoor area and the food sales. He said they were all
worried about things that could transpire and now it was an interesting place. It felt like the
same scale as what they were talking about with the bistro. He said Bourgeois Pig was different
and a concept the then-Commission wasn’t comfortable with and struggled with.

Corliss said the struggle was the sidewalk permit and the food sales requirement.

Dever said it was the same concept and the Bourgeois Pig turned out great.

Corliss said it looked like Bourgeois Pig was successful from a business point.

Amyx said the Planning Commission had done a good job in going through the process
and making recommendations to the City Commission. He said the only question was that if
they were to concur with the Planning Commission’s recommendation, he asked if there would
be anything else the City Commission wished to add in the condition of approval of this site.

Dever said Schumm’s concern was about the viability of something like this and the fact
that it was running with the land and not a use permitted to the applicant. He said that would be
the only reason he thought about looking back because that might give the Commission that
trigger. He said obviously this was a new type of service in a new area that they weren’t familiar

with.

22



Corliss said he did agree with the applicant’s observation in that it would probably take
some time to build that uniqueness for a food location. He said this was an area that didn’t have
that history. He said the City Commission might want to forecast to the property owner because
it did run with the land and successors that at 24 months of operation that the City Commission
would have that authority to look at that information, determine whether or not they met the 55%
food sale requirement. If they hadn’t met that requirement, then the City Commission had the
authority to limit the hours.

Dever said or bring it back to the City Commission for discussion. He said he was in
favor of moving forward but didn’t want Schumm to feel uncomfortable with this decision.

Schumm said he appreciated everything that had been done, but he was just trying to
bring up the points for discussion. He said on one hand they had an ordinance and he liked to
follow the City’s ordinances because if they started to not follow those ordinances, then they fall
apart. He said if we waive parts of an ordinance, then suddenly there was a watered down
situation where people could shoot holes in things and rightfully so. He said he had been very
instrumental in trying to protect downtown in terms of its appropriateness, its character, how it
presented itself to people and a lot of what he was concerned about was how the City’s
hospitality industry operated, how it functioned, and how it presented itself to the public. If there
were 20 bars up and down the street with broken glass all over the sidewalk, there wouldn’t be
quite the charm it had the way it worked right now. He said he loved that district, but was
having a hard time getting by the fact that there was no kitchen in this bistro. He said he could
see that they were going to import some food and try to make it work along with the beverage
sales that were non-alcoholic. He said he was willing to give it shot. It's a good program. The
statement was made that the liquor license was reviewed every two years. Once issuing a
liquor license it was awfully hard to take it back. It was like a right in the State of Kansas. He
said he had been on two such task forces to try and revoke a license and they weren'’t easy. He

said it wasn’t a safety valve at all. He said where the City Commission had some leverage was

23



that any restrictions the City Commission wanted to place on that bistro now and in two years
check it and if it was going well that was fine, but if it wasn’t going well it would need to be
adjusted. He said he would like to see this issue back in two years to see what was happening.
He said his question was if the City Commission would have the opportunity to make
adjustments at that time and place restrictions on the establishment if things weren’t going well.
McCullough said staff had thought about this because as they’'ve gone through the
potential that Krsnich couldn’t meet the 55% food sales requirement after two years, typically
the applicant would have some avenues to pursue. One would be to in short order, come into
compliance if that meant adding a kitchen or adding different services. The other would be to
request that the condition be altered or removed all together. He said staff had been very
careful not make too many parallels to the downtown district. He said it was a different district
all together, but the standard was borrowed and was a tight negotiating package of zoning
standards. The list was long about prohibited uses and this wasn’t the only use. One of the
avenues the applicant could pursue was to go back through the process with the Planning and
City Commissions to change the condition. If he had an establishment that was going well and
there weren’t complaints, he might request that the condition be removed all together. There
also might be an opportunity to request that the City revert to option 2, which was to place
different kinds of conditions on the use that restrict hours and those types of things, but remove
the food sales. Typically, downtown restaurants didn’t have those options to make those
requests because it was conditional zoning in this case, whereas downtown was the zoning
standards by right. He said they had a built in 2 year timeframe. If after 2 years, the bistro was
meeting the 55% rule, then he would keep going with it. If not, he needed to make changes and
those were the avenues to pursue. He said they could of course build in a review of some sort
and advise the Commission on what was happening after those two years, but after two years if

the bistro was not meeting it, then changes would need to be made in any event.

24



Schumm said with this zoning request the City Commission would approve it with a City
Commission review at the end of 2 years of operation if not meeting the 55% requirement.

McCullough said if he wasn’t meeting the 55% requirement, they could build that into the
ordinance. He said it would either be shut down or pursue some condition amendment of some
sort.

Schumm said it was not anything other than what he already agreed to because staff
was going to review it in 2 years.

McCullough said it could be reviewed monthly because those reports were submitted
monthly. He said staff could track it and advise Schumm on its progress, but it wouldn’t have an
impact on the operation until after two years.

Schumm asked what reports were submitted monthly.

Douglass said what staff asked for with liquor license applications were copies of the
liquor excise tax returns.

Krsnich said he would want to make sure the two year period started from the certificate
of occupancy. He said they probably won’t even begin construction until spring. He said they
were going to put as much thought, if not more, into this project then they were per square foot
from the Poehler or Cider. He said there wasn’t a chance that they would be open until the
summer of 2014.

Schumm said they could start when they received their certificate of occupancy or when
they received their liquor license.

Davis said two years sounded like a fair amount of time. He said for the potential
precedent that the Commission discussed regarding loosening restrictions, he wondered if they
were talking about that in two years and then saying they might be generating monthly reports
and on one wanted to look at monthly reports. He asked if a precursory review of one year be

appropriate to make sure they weren’t hovering at 8%.

25



Dever said they discussed that, but the Commission didn’t have any authority. He said
the Commission didn’t want the authority because they didn’t believe it was fair to create this
concept in 12 months. He said reviewing the food sales in one year might be premature
because it might take 12 months to ramp up and then boom the concept took off. He said they
already talked about that.

Davis said he wondered if the option was that after two years then they start looking at it
and then another year to sort through the issues and if it was a problem and couldn’t sell
enough food then they would drop down to midnight. He said what it sounded like was that they
were a full-fledged bar for 3 years and then switch to midnight was what it could end up being.

Dever said that was a possibility.

Moved by Farmer to approve the request to rezone (Z-13-00287) approximately .27
acres from RM12D-UC District to CS-UC District, located at 804 Pennsylvania Street and adopt
on first reading, Ordinance No. 8920.

Schumm said regarding noise that bothered neighbors on a continuous basis, if that
happened, from midnight to 2:00 a.m. He said right now the weather was nice and windows
were opened, he asked what they would have other than calling the police.

McCullough said the City had a noise ordinance and police response.

Dever said asked if adopting Ordinance No. 8920 was the Planning Commission’s
recommendation.

Amyx said if the 55% rule was not met it would automatically came back to the City
Commission. He said through the process did any of the language that the City Manager
brought up needed to be included. He said it would need to begin after the license had been
issued or the time of occupancy permit was issued.

Corliss said the way the ordinance was written was that said restriction shall be applied

beginning on the 2 year anniversary on the commencement of the use.

26



Dever said to be clear, Corliss indicated that upon that review the Commission could
dictate those changes be made anyway so special language wasn’t needed.

McCullough said correct.

Corliss said the way the ordinance was written the applicant would not be in compliance
with the City’s zoning code if they weren’t meeting this requirement.

Schumm said regarding the motion, if the 55% rule was not met it would be brought back
to the City Commission in 2 years.

Dever said no, it would be automatic.

Schumm said it was a staff review.

McCullough said after 2 years, if the food sales were not met, there would be a zoning
violation and in that case either the City Commission upon report from staff could initiate a
rezoning and change the condition or the applicant would have avenues to pursue to remedy
the violation.

Moved by Farmer, seconded by Riordan, to approve the request to rezone (Z-13-
00287) approximately .27 acres from RM12D-UC District to CS-UC District, located at 804
Pennsylvania Street and adopt on first reading, Ordinance No. 8920. Motion carried
unanimously.

2. Conduct _a public_hearing and consider recommendations from the Historic

Resources Commission to designate the following properties as Landmarks on
the Lawrence Register of Historic Places:

-900 Rhode Island Street, Turnhalle
- 1500 Haskell Avenue, Kibbee House
-1734 Kent Terrace, Joseph Savage House

Lynne Braddock Zollner, Historic Resources Administrator, presented the staff report.

Amyx asked about the 1500 Haskell Avenue property that was connected to 1734 Kent
Terrace.

Zollner said there was a correction that needed to be made in the City Commission’s

Agenda Packet regarding the report from the Historic Resources Commission on the Kibbee

27



House. She said the environs that the HRC adopted was for Kent Terrace. She said the HRC
adopted the definition for environs for both the Kibbee and Savage Houses on separate
occasions.

Dever said the City Commission couldn’t get to the City Commission packets on-line
because there were information technology issues.

Schumm said the State legislature this last year repealed the environs of historic
structures and asked Zollner to explain.

Zollner said the State Historic Preservation Law had an environs review component of
500 feet from the listed property. Any license or permitted action within 500 feet had to be
reviewed for its impact on the Historic Resources which was part of the State Historic
Preservation Law. That law changed as of July 1% of this year and took away the environs
component and there was no longer an environs component to the State Historic Preservation
Law. The local landmark nominations that were being addressed was under the City’s Code
and had in Chapter 22 and environs of 250 feet from a landmark property to look at building or
demolition permits for the impact on the listed properties.

Schumm asked if that was a local ordinance.

Zollner said correct.

Amyx asked if the 900 Rhode Island and the 1500 Haskell were currently in the
environs.

Zollner said 1500 Haskell was listed individually and on the National Register of Historic
Places and 900 Rhode Island was a contributing structure to the historic district.

Amyx asked if 1734 Kent Terrace created new environs at that location.

Dever said historic district.

Zollner said it created environs. 1734 Kent Terrace would have a new 250 foot environs
around it.

Dever asked if Zollner was talking about a local ordinance.

28



Zollner said correct.

Amyx said anything that was done on any of those properties within 250 feet had to be
reviewed regarding the effect it had on the structure.

Zollner said correct, building permit or demolition permit.

Schumm asked if the City’s environs ordinance precluded someone from building
something in the environs.

Zollner said it was used as a planning tool. She said for instance, if someone submitted
a building permit, it would be reviewed according to those standards that were adopted in that
environs definition. It wasn’t meant to stop building or building a new structure, but was meant
to make it more compatible with the historic structure or the environs. She said if for some
reason the HRC, which would be looking at new construction, denied a Certificate of
Appropriateness the appeal would be to the City Commission that would review that project.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Amyx, to open the public hearing. Motion carried
unanimously.

Dennis Brown, Lawrence Preservation Alliance (LPA), said as owners of the Turnhalle,
the Lawrence Preservation Alliance was requesting its nomination to the Lawrence Register of
Historic Places and strongly supported the nominations of the Kibbee farmstead at 1734 Kent
Terrace as well. Currently there were a number of Lawrence properties including two of the
three they were discussing that were listed on the State and National Registers who significance
had already been determined by the Kansas Historic Sites Board of Review that were not listed
on the City’s register. He said they thought this was due to an existing process that required a
separate hearing for a local listing than the one for the State and National, as there was tax
benefits connected to State and National listing, but nothing for the local. The local register was
tended to be overlooked and LPA believed it fell into a range of preservation housekeeping that
they needed to catch up on. The three properties in this diverse grouping were all worthy. The

Kibbee Farmstead at 15" and Haskell and the Joseph Savage Farm House, just southeast of

29



23 and lowa were both outside the City limits when they were built. The Savage Homestead
which was 17 foot by 25 foot was the original structure built in the spring of 1855 and that
structure was still a part of the house by one of the earliest immigrant settlers to the Lawrence
area. The Kibbee Farmstead established on the east side of Haskell around 1910 still retained
a number of its agricultural outbuildings and was similar to the Haskell row of houses in the
1300 block in that their large lots still today evoke a feel of their rural past and Turnhalle near
the center of downtown was the social home of a German immigrant population that was both
large enough and very capable of providing a driving force for the establishment and growth of
this City and downtown in particular. He said they hoped the City Commission would agree with
the unanimous resolutions of the Lawrence Historic Resources Commission and place all three
of those properties on the Lawrence Register of Historic Places.

KT Walsh, Lawrence, said she strongly supported the nomination of those three
properties to the City’s local historic register. The structures were unique, but they represented
different eras and different immigrant groups coming to Lawrence. The Turnhalle was
especially meaningful because the man who built her house was one of the founding members
and there were many German immigrants sprinkled up and down Rhode Island and Connecticut
Street that then became merchant's downtown. It was a very important structure and she
hoped the City Commission supported all three nominations.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Farmer, to close the public hearing.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Riordan, to adopt on first reading, Ordinance No.
8928 for landmark designation of 900 Rhode Island Street to the Lawrence Register of Historic
Places. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Riordan, to adopt on first reading, Ordinance No.
8929 for landmark designation of 1500 Haskell Avenue to the Lawrence Register of Historic

Places. Motion carried unanimously.

30


http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_900_rhode_island_ord_8928.pdf
http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_900_rhode_island_ord_8928.pdf
http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_1500_haskell_ord_8929.pdf
http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_1500_haskell_ord_8929.pdf

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Riordan, to adopt on first reading, Ordinance No.
8930 for landmark designation of 1734 Kent Terrace, to the Lawrence Register of Historic
Places. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Considered approving use of right-of-way and closure of the northbound lane of
New Hampshire, from 9™ Street south to the Arts Center through March 1, 2014.

Chuck Soules, Public Works Director, presented the staff report.

Amyx said when the street was originally asked to be blocked off for a special event
inside the Arts Center, staff talked to Arts Center about any big events and the access going
back and forth across to the parking garage.

Soules said he sent an email to the Arts Center Director and received a response, but it
wasn’t a clear response. Staff did accommodate for that event and everything went well and
had no complaints or any issues of concerns during that event.

Farmer said he had contact with folks from the Arts Center and this being closed for the
better part of 5 months it was going to greatly inhibit their picking up their kids. He said he
asked Corliss to see if there was any way the City could be more accommodating than to shut
the whole road down. He said he wasn’t sure what the solution would be, but if they could allow
parking on the east or west side of the streets so parents could pick up their children. There
were a lot of programs that would happen between now and March 1, 2014. He said he was
reticent to say let’s close the northbound lane for 5 months.

Soules said the request for the no parking came from the Fire Department so they could
get their equipment in if they needed to. He said he could talk to the Fire Chief because picking
up kids was different from parking and leaving their cars at that location.

Dever suggested a loading zone sign for 15 minutes.

David Corliss, City Manager, said that would be his suggestion. He said there were
other areas further to the south where they might be able to make loading zones or temporary

parking. He said they had to be cognizant that there were other businesses located in that area

31


http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_1734_kent_terr_ord_8930.pdf
http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/pl_1734_kent_terr_ord_8930.pdf

as well. He suggested that maybe the area in front of transit might be available for temporary
parking and loading zone. He said the best solution they could come up with was that they
might be able to temporarily move it back and open it up which might help a little bit, but the
parent taking the child on a daily basis might or might not know exactly what the traffic pattern
would be.

Dever said he didn’t like the “on again/off again” nature. He said he used that street
normally to get back to his office. He said he understood the rare event of moving it because
there were tons of people out of town that didn’t know how to get around. He said he hadn’t
heard that complaint yet and was surprised.

Farmer said anything they could do to make it more accommodating for their programs.
He said that was a long time to close a street right in front of the Arts Center.

Soules said he agreed with the issue of “on again/off again” because people going north
bound and it was closed one day and opened the next day and then there was no place to turn
around and would need to go through the parking garage.

Mayor Dever called for public comment.

Leslie Soden said they didn’t have as a neighborhood any kind of opinion on what
should be done with this. She said they looked at that corner of 9" & New Hampshire for a half
hour trying to figure out what could be the safest because as a dog walker she actually had a
client in the building at 901 New Hampshire. She said even just the short time she was walking
a dog in the area in front, she had seen people use that lane which was blocked off. She said
they wait for traffic to come through and then completely take up the lane. She said she saw
two school buses do that and the next day she saw some senior citizens doing the same thing.
It was incredibly dangerous to watch that happen. She said they also had concerns about
pedestrian usage at 9" and New Hampshire. Obviously closing that whole section of the street

would actually be safer for pedestrians and you wouldn’t have people not knowing what to do.

32



Mike Riling, member of Downtown Lawrence Inc., said they did receive notice, but didn’t
have time to discuss it. He said obviously it would be in everyone’s best interest to get this
project done as quickly as possible, but the one thing he would say was to see it closed for two
weeks and then something happened with the construction and didn’t have any answers to
questions and didn’'t get a change to ask questions. If it was closed down due to weather it
would be nice to see the street open back up. If it was closed for any long-term it would be
unfortunate to see it close for two weeks and not being used and the road closed at the same
time. He said no one wanted this project to drag out and if it expedited the construction, it was
something that made sense, but wouldn’t want to see it close down and nothing happening on
the site for several weeks.

KT Walsh said they appreciated the heads up as did the neighbors and as a side point
they were having trouble getting people on walkers and wheel chairs into their gallery and they
agreed to put down boards and a small ramp to accommodate that.

Amyx said he agreed that they wanted to get this project done as quickly and as safety
as possible. He said if they could take care of the loading issues and close it down to get the
project done as quickly as possible.

Moved by Amyx, seconded by Riordan, to approve the use of right-of-way and closure
of northbound lane of New Hampshire Street, from 9" Street south to the Arts Center, until
March 1, 2014, and direct staff to find a way to accommodate a loading zone for the Arts
Center. Motion carried unanimously.

4, City Auditor presented an audit recommendation follow-up memo and updated
information on street lights.

Michael Eglinski, City Auditor presented an audit recommendation regarding street
lights.
Riordan said if the City were to buy those street lights and switch to LED lighting, he

asked if that could be done one at a time.

33


http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/auditor_recommendation_followup_memo.pdf
http://www.lawrenceks.org/assets/agendas/cc/2013/10-22-13/auditor_recommendation_street_lighting_memo.pdf

Eglinski said one City that he talked to had a plan where they were replacing the old
lights with LED’s, first on the arterial streets and later he thought there was technology where
they could replace one at a time, but he didn’t think that was what most cities were doing. He
said Independence Missouri was replacing their entire system in one swoop.

Riordan said when replacing those lights there was a certain cost they would give to the
City. He said then they would differentiate when they used the one that used less electricity.

Eglinski said right now Westar didn’'t have a tariff for LED street lighting. It wanting to
put an LED light on, they would need a meter as well.

Dever asked about the charge for the meter.

Eglinski said there was a significant charge for a meter and they didn’'t have tariff right
now that had LED’s except for a small pilot program and Tonganoxie was in that program.

Riordan said if they had some type of tariff set forward then it would be more
reasonable.

Eglinski said yes.

Dever asked if they set the tariffs based on actual data in consumption or was it pulled
out of the sky like the rates they just adjusted.

Eglinski said it was a process where they come with a proposal and there was a
discussion with the Kansas Corporation Commission and then their staff did an analysis.

Dever asked if Eglinski investigated whether Westar had plans for developing a tariff for
LED light fixtures.

Eglinski said he looked at the tariff that was currently being considered and Westar was
reviewing all of their rates and there wasn’t anything now that they were considering regarding
the tariff.

Schumm asked how much Eglinski would estimate it would cost the City to buy the 3500

lights.

34



Eglinski said that was a hard question because it was a hegotiation and it depended on
age of the system and other things.

Schumm said based on what the other cities had done.

Eglinski said other cities had been paying about $800 to $1,000 per light pole, but it
really depended on the age of the equipment. A pole that was 4 years old versus 20 years old
would have a different price.

Dever said the pole was one thing, but the cobra head of the fixture itself was different.

Eglinski said cities working together seemed to have better luck. He said part of what
happened to the cities in the area was that Lenexa did a lot of negotiation and it took 5 to 7
years to negotiate with KCPL. The other cities worked together and worked with the information
that Lenexa received and things were much quicker. He said they worked with the utility and
then the utility had a method then to value the system. He said it wasn’t an easy thing to do.

Amyx asked if Eglinski was aware of any other cities in the north region that might want
to negotiate for the purchase of their poles.

Eglinski said Olathe was talking to Westar at one point.

Amyx said he looked at the rate of return at 10.6% on the lighting system. He said
Eglinski’s comment about utilities selling a system expected to receive a fair price.

Eglinski said Westar covered a lot of the larger cities in Kansas.

Amyx said they were currently spending $14 per pole to operate the system. He said
before the City Commission directed staff to do a complete review, he would like to have a
business plan of what the City could expect to have in savings, plus what the cost of
maintenance before figuring out it the City wanted to pursue some avenue. He said there was a
whole lot to consider other than purchasing lights because the City would need to build another
department which would take away from another department.

Eglinski said all five of those other cities put out an RFP for a company to maintain the

lights. He said there was a large company in Kansas City that had done a lot of that work. In

35



fact Westar had to outsource their maintenance for a while to this company that was doing the
maintenance for other cities. These cities didn’t have a department, but contracted out the
maintenance.

Dever asked if it was $14 a month.

Eglinski said $14 a month was an average.

Schumm said if the City bought the pole and fixture, would they meter each pole.

Dever said they had LED poles at the intersection of 9" Street and Kentucky.

Eglinski said those were probably metered.

Dever asked if the City had to pay for those meters.

Corliss said correct. He said he noted that the costs were such where staff wanted to
further examine those costs and would like City Commission direction. He said one of the big
challenges was in discussions with Westar, they wanted to have so many lights that were
metered and what the City wanted to do was to meter a number of LED lights or whatever light
they were able to put up, agree that they use a certain amount of power and not have some of
those metered because otherwise they could have that meter charge which drove up the City’s
costs and impacted the analysis.

Schumm said they didn’t want meters all over town.

Corliss said it wasn’t so much having more meters, but paying that charge that drove up
the City’s cost. He said they wanted to look at the analysis but it negated the value of the City
owning and maintaining it and maybe having less power if having that meter charge.

Dever said when getting down the economy of scale at LED, the meter was going slow.
He said he could see where there might have been differences in sodium or mercury type bulb,
but now they were talking about in the order of that magnitude of 10% of the power. The
justification for a meter was diminished tremendously when a rate of consumption went down.
He said they were arguing over tenths of cents. He said this would be a very good idea to

pursue at least investigating how they charged the City. He said he agreed the meters through-

36



off the value tremendously. He said they were talking about putting in internet infrastructure
which would be attached to the City’s poles and wouldn’'t need to pay any attachment fee or
agreement fee.

Schumm said he thought the City could get greener quicker through the City’s own
initiative. He said he didn’t know how long Westar Energy would change all the light bulbs to
LED’s. He said Westar was selling more electricity this way.

Corliss said Chad Luce who had been the City’s contact with Westar did know about this
meeting, but wasn’t able to attend. He said staff obviously wanted to continue discussions with
Luce in the future.

Dever said staff could get the data from the meters from the lights at the intersection of
9" Street.

Corliss said staff was also trying to do some more of those meters throughout the
community.

Eglinski said it wasn’t really an issue of meters, but whether the utility was willing to
provide it at an unmetered rate.

Dever said staff could figure out what it was costing from the meter and start using that
data to justify a per pole rate without having meters.

Eglinski said that was what was done now which was a calculation for the lights.

Dever asked if they were doing that with LED’s.

Eglinski said no, but it was the same math.

Dever said it would be interesting to see what kind of savings the City could have. He
said he heard their justification, but didn’t see the numbers.

Eglinski said they had a very different situation because they owned their electric
utilities.

Dever asked if they generated power too.

37



Eglinski said yes. He said he also had an audit recommendation and follow up and
there was one recommendation that he would ask the City Commission to close. He said there
was a recommendation about implementing a best practice from the taste of water audit which
was about providing additional information to consumers and have the information available at
all times which had been done. He said there was information on the City’s webpage about
what could cause funny tasting water and how the City monitored that water as well as some
tips what customers could do to reduce the effect if sensitive to the taste of water. He said he
would like to close that recommendation.

Moved by Schumm, seconded by Riordan, to direct staff to close the requested
recommendation concerning the water audit taste and odor. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Dever called for public comment.

Leslie Soden said this gave the City the opportunity to pursue future green initiatives.

Jeff Chen said right now with the LED lights a person could use 100 watts to replace 250
watts, but a couple years later, they might only need 70 watts. He said he thought it was better
to have a lamp to replace the LED’s and retro fit the bulb which would be cheaper.

Schumm said he thought staff should follow up on this issue. He said it looked like there
was an opportunity to save money but at the same time get the LED. He said he would be
interested in looking at different options. First of all the suggestion about studying the cost of
the 4 or 5 lights at 9™ Street to see what they talking about in terms of electricity and the
information they could gather from that and a discussion with Westar to see what was possible
in terms of meter or no meter. He said most people could come up with a close calculation of
what it would cost to run a street light. He said if you meter one, you multiply it by 3500, unless
there were all different bulbs, but you could still classify those. He said he was in favor of
looking to see what information they could get back and move along with this idea. He said it
seemed to make good sense especially with the LED available and the lesser amount of

electricity it used.

38



Riordan said it was a great idea.

Moved by Riordan, seconded by Schumm, to receive the audit recommendation
regarding street lights and direct staff to evaluate the purchase of the poles and LED lighting
and contact other cities within the area to see if they would join Lawrence in going to Westar
and requesting some changes. Motion carried unanimously.

E. PUBLIC COMMENT: None.
F. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

David Corliss, City Manager, outlined potential future agenda items.
G: COMMISSION ITEMS:

Farmer said the Mayor Dever, City Manager Corliss, County Administrator Craig
Weinaug and County Commissioner Nancy Thellman and he went down to Bartlesville
Oklahoma to meet with the Delaware Tribe to understand about what their intentions were with
the land and received some great information about their history and the fact that the land they
purchased went to Pine and then back to the Delaware Tribe. He said it was interesting to hear
the types of things they wanted to do to assist the Native American community. He said they
asked the Delaware Tribe to clarify some issues about which they felt concerns had been
voiced from the community. He said they were very interested in figuring out how to bring
programs to Lawrence that would help the native populations in this community. He said they
asked about gaming and a casino and the Delaware Tribe wasn’t going to take that off the table
as a possibility. He said they were in the process of filing a service area, identifying this area as
a service area to serve their native population. Right now they were under the Cherokee Tribe
which meant they really didn’t have sovereignty even though they did somewhat. He said they
shared a long history and would email the presentation to the City Manager and was he sure he
could place it on the digital library. He said they wanted to have a few more meetings, privately

to understand the land that they purchased and the stormwater run-off. He said they

39



encouraged the Delaware Tribe to come to the Lawrence community for a public meeting and
hear from folks about concerns.

Dever said he attended the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, City Commission meeting and
met with the City Manager and the Director of Planning and asked many questions about the
tribe and the tribe had been residents of Bartlesville for many years. He said their City Manager
and Planning Director both said that the tribe was wonderful to work with, trustworthy, straight
forward and a benefit to the community. He said the tribe shared with them that they would be
moving their tribal headquarters to Kansas for the many reasons they learned and they would
still have the nice facilities in Bartlesville, but wanted to expand it to 36 counties. He said the
Bartlesville City Manager and Commissioners were happy with all of the interactions that they
had and they donated land for a city water tower just recently. He said many of their services
would serve the community. He said their City Manager and Commissioners indicated that if
there were any questions from the Lawrence City Commission, to give them a call. He said they
indicated that they could send Lisa Beamon, Director of Community Development and a KU
grad, to Lawrence to discuss some of the planning and development issues.

Farmer said the next step was answering some questions they had about the land and
they were encouraged to have a public meeting.

Schumm thanked everyone that attended in Bartlesville.

Dever asked if there were any other Commission items.

Schumm said he had received over the last couple of weeks a number of emails and
inquires as to how the traffic was going to function on Bob Billings once 15" Street was opened
up. He said there was some action going on in that area and people were starting to be
concerned about how traffic was going to function. He said he email back that one of the rules
was to study the traffic corridor from 15" Street and K-10 through to lowa Street to see what
was needed to adjust it. The fear was that there was going to be substantial increase in traffic

that was going to be high speed and it was going to be out of the neighborhood type traffic. He

40



said he emailed all those people indicating that they would be studying it and would be a
Commission item prior to any opening of the corridor. If staff could come back with some kind
of timeline it would be helpful for those people who were concerned. He said he didn’t even
know how long it would be before that intersection was completed.

Corliss said that intersection would be bid in spring of 2014 and hopefully be completed
by the end of 2015. He said they already started the design work for the traffic signal at George
Williams Way and Bob Billings Parkway. He said they’'ve also started work on just this issue
looking at it from a traffic standpoint to understand what needed a level of attention. It was a
four lane arterial and would have increased traffic. He said the arterial would be built to move
traffic so the question was going to be were there some things staff needed to do in addition to
all the other things.

Schumm said somewhere along the line when staff was done with their review they
needed to get everyone together to see what was needed.

Corliss said they were going to be doing some major maintenance along Bob Billings
Parkway next year so what they were trying to do was to see if there were some things
concurrent with that that would make some sense.

Amyx said at an agenda meeting last week, they had more discussions about
improvements that might be necessary along Bob Billings Parkway and also whether or not they
needed increased patrol in that area.

Farmer said last week he was out sick and did not attend the City Commission meeting.
He said he was tweeting during the meeting and engaging with a different kind of crowd. He
said he thought the City Commission should do whatever they could to engage everyone in the
conversation not just those who watch on T.V. or the internet, but also those that follow along on
social media and interacting. He said he wondered if it was possible at some point to consider
tweeting and have someone from the City have a twitter feed with a hash tag and they could

see people’s thoughts during the meeting because it would be a good way of interact with the

41



community and see what folks were thinking. He said it would be a really neat way to engage a
different part of the community.

Dever said Farmer mentioned that idea of tweeting earlier and thought that was a good
idea. He said it would be nice to get public feedback in a different way. He said it might get
more people engaged in what was happening at City Hall.

Farmer asked if the City Commission would be okay that he met with staff to figure out a
way to do that.

Riordan said it would be reasonable to look at, but his only concern was trying to engage
the City Commission, the people attending the City Commission meeting, and trying to follow a
twitter feed might be overwhelming.

Amyx said as long as it wasn’t taking away from the comments.

Schumm said some issues were relatively complex and were dealing with staff,
applicant, proponents, and opponents in a forum and if someone only received bits and pieces
of the information and were tweeting back, he asked if it would disrupt or get complicated.
Sometimes the Commission Meetings were like a three ring circus and it was hard to keep up
with everyone in the room to try to keep up the information that was being generated and if
there was someone off-site that was partially engaged, he asked how that worked. He said it's
worth a try.

Farmer said he thought there might be a deep interest in the community.

Dever said if someone filtered the tweets and was presented at some point in time at the
meeting. He said a live feed in front of everyone’s eyes would be distracting.

Schumm said he just starting reading the blogs.

Dever said if all Farmer wanted to do was to engage and receive feedback it didn’t need
to be instantaneous.

H: CALENDAR:

David Corliss, City Manager, reviewed calendar items

42



I: CURRENT VACANCIES - BOARDS/COMMISSIONS:
Existing and upcoming vacancies on City of Lawrence Boards and Commissions were
listed on the agenda.
Moved by Schumm, seconded by Amyx, to adjourn at 9:17 p.m. Motion carried
unanimously.

MINUTES APPROVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION ON NOVEMBER 19, 2013.

M

Jonatfan M. Douglass, City Clerk

43



